




  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

1 
 

Mashpee Planning Board 

 Minutes of Meeting 

Wednesday, October 19, 2022 at 7:00PM 

Mashpee Town Hall - Waquoit Meeting Room 

16 Great Neck Road North 

Mashpee, Ma 02649 

 

Broadcast Live on Local Channel 18  

Call-in Conference Number: (508)-539-1400 x 8585 

Streamed Live on the Town of Mashpee website 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel -18 

 

Present: Chair Mary Waygan, Mike Richardson, Dennis Balzarini, Karen Faulkner, John 

Fulone, Robert (Rob) Hansen  

Also Present: Evan Lehrer – Town Planner, Christopher Kirrane – Attorney for Forestdale 

Road, LLC  

CALL TO ORDER 

Chairwoman Waygan called the meeting of the Planning Board to order at 7:00P.M. The 

Pledge of Allegiance was recited.  

 

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES – September 21, 2022  

MOTION:  

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to accept the minutes as written. Seconded by Mr. 

Richardson. All in favor.  

 

Ms. Waygan would like the September 21, 2022 date to be added to the next agenda, as the 

wrong date was noted on this evenings agenda.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING  

7:10P.M. (Continued from 10/05/22) 

   Applicant:  Marcello Mallegni, Forestdale Road, LLC  

   Location:   532 Main Street (Map 26, Block 6) 

 Request:   The applicant requests consideration for approval of a 9 lot      

definitive subdivision plan of land consisting of approximately 

18.05 acres located on Main Street (Route 130) between 

Nicoletta’s Way and Echo Road.  

 

https://www.mashpeema.gov/channel%20-18


  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

2 
 

Ms. Waygan noted it has been a while before they first presented, so she would like a recap 

from scratch. She will prompt the Board to ask questions, give the Town Planner some time, 

then she will open up comment to the public. She stated there was also written 

correspondence.  

 

Attorney Christopher Kirrane is present this evening on behalf of his client Forestdale Road, 

LLC. They are seeking approval of a 9 lot definitive subdivision located in both C3 and I1 

zones, all of it being in the industrial overlay. He was not prepared to deliver a big overview 

this evening. At the last Public Hearing he reported they would be seeking approval of the 

definitive subdivision plan, as they were not able to reach an agreement with the owners of 

Nicolettas Way. The Board discussed the prospect of a traffic impact study. Mr. Lehrer was 

going to send out quotes for that study, and some have come in while one more quote is 

outstanding. It rests in the Board’s discretion if they want it done by an outside consultant. A 

traffic impact study may affect the ultimate plan and may take 4-6 weeks for completion. If that 

motion passes, they would be looking for a continuance to the December meeting. However, 

he has one technical question. There was an old CCC decision when the prior owner cut down 

trees many years ago. The decision was to require that the owner convey 4 acres to the 

Conservation Commission. He needs clarification from the Cape Cod Commission for before 

approval or to propose it as part of any approval process. His preference, if the Board wanted 

to approve, he could reference the subdivision plan and lot approved in the deed, conveying 

the space to the Conservation Commission. In his meeting with Mr. Lehrer this afternoon, it 

was asked he see when this lot was created and by whom. Mr. Kirrane has not had a chance 

to look into this, but he will have that information well before the next meeting.  

 

Mr. Balzarini commented there was residential in the back where the 4 acres are. He is looking 

to see where they can put affordable/attainable housing.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated there could be no access on Ashumet Road, that portion is restricted as 

open space with no access.  

 

Mr. Richardson mentioned if the 4 acres have already been decided, make it part of the 

agreement.  

 

Ms. Faulkner is reviewing the page with the plan and through best management practices for 

the construction entrance, it looks like it goes onto Main Street. This is a dirt road that they 

want to create, Leamar Drive. She would like to know if they are proposing a curb cut.  

 

Mr. Kirrane stated they have to gain access for the entrance to create the subdivision road. 

They need to build a new road in between Nicolettas Way and Echo Road. That is what is 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

3 
 

shown on that plan she is reviewing, a cul-de-sac road named Leamar Drive. That would be 

the only access point.  

 

Ms. Faulkner read letters from abutters to get a permit from the DPW and the approval of 

subdivisions. She knows this area well, while there is very little traffic from the storage facility, 

and no traffic from the solar, there are many lumber trucks from Stonewood and Cape Cod 

Coffee.  

 

Mr. Kirrane stated Evergreen Circle and Echo Road have a variety of businesses that hold a 

variety of uses. Currently, there are no uses proposed for this project. Whoever buys it will 

propose a use and every use has to go before the ZBA.  

 

Ms. Faulkner commented it cannot be sold unless there is ingress and egress. There will be 

30+ trips a day, from their land or that area in general. As part of the curb cut policy, this may 

be beyond purview of the DPW Director, and she is wondering if the traffic study would dictate 

that. She noted this area is somewhat dangerous. If you are really unfamiliar driving along and 

a truck comes out you have to slam on the breaks.   

 

Mr. Balzarini asked if their Consulting Engineer, Ed Pesce looked at this. He also asked about 

firetruck turn radius. Mr. Lehrer stated Ms. Pesce’s report is in their packet and he did make a 

comment relative to turning radius. Mr. Pesce is satisfied with the engineering.  

 

Ms. Waygan would like Ed Pesce present at the next meeting and she would like an update 

from him.  

 

Mr. Hansen commented the last time Mr. Kirrane was here there was discussion about the 

intersecting Sturgis Road, sidewalk, and bike path. Will the traffic impact study touch base on 

the pedestrian traffic as well as automobile?   

 

Mr. Lehrer wrote the scope and noted it would look at all safety concerns. He printed the scope 

for Mr. Kirrane.  

 

Ms. Waygan asked Mr. Lehrer if the plan had been submitted to the Board of Health for 

preliminary review. She would like the report from the BOH as well as their conclusion.   

 

Mr. Lehrer noted it was approved by the Heath Agent from the BOH, as they were not able to 

meet in quorum to make a recommendation. This requires a timely filing with the Board of 

Health, and there are comments and an approval, but not from the governing body. It was filed 

with the BOH in a timely fashion.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

4 
 

Ms. Waygan would like Mr. Pesce’s comments about meeting the design and road 

construction standards that govern the subdivision of land. Regarding the Cape Cod 

Commission, she would like a certificate of compliance. She is struggling with the fact it is not 

special permit, and it’s her understanding that an approval of a definitive subdivision plan 

cannot be conditioned. It either complies or it doesn’t, you cannot have provisional conditions. 

She would like to see that land deeded conservation as well as confirmation of when and how 

the lot was created. Before we talk about the traffic study she would like input from the public.  

 

Mr. Kirrane will talk to the Cape Cod Commission and maybe they will be able to give him a 

conditional certificate. It may require two separate plans coming before the Board. He will work 

it out with them.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

Arden Russell- She is an abutter to this proposal. As the portion of the property with access to 

Main Street is zoned C3, the proposed subdivision is subject to 174-40: Access Ways to 

Nonresidential Districts. This states there shall be a required minimum separation of 200 feet 

between the center line to Rt. 130 and any other access way, or to the sideline of any street 

intersecting said roadways. The 532 Main Street subdivision proposal clearly does not meet 

this requirement. There are two access ways significantly less than 200 feet from the road and 

that is Sturgis Lane and Bakers Road, an ancient way. In the zoning, for safety reasons, less 

than 200 feet of separation between major intersections is not safe. As she tries to leave 

Sturgis Lane now, she needs to deal with a significant amount of traffic to the south from 

Nicolettas Way, Maffei Landscaping alone creates hundreds of trips per day. Now, possibly, a 

significant amount of traffic directly to her north, much less than 200 feet away, with this 

proposed road, how is she going to get out? Both of these intersections are in very close 

proximity to Sturgis Lane and Bakers Road. There is currently a significant amount of traffic 

from Echo Road and now from Evergreen Circle, which is not even completely developed yet. 

Cape Cod Coffee, the dispensary, and many other additional industrial businesses create 

hundreds of cars. As this proposed subdivision does not comply with zoning 174-40, and for 

the safety of the community, she urges the Planning Board to not grant approval of this 

subdivision road.  

 

Ms. Waygan asked in that traffic study scope, if it has suggestions on how to proceed in 

making things safer?   

 

Mr. Lehrer stated the study is to assess the impact of the actual proposal. It is in consideration 

of the predominant use of the district and future build out projections, at certain peak hour trips, 

generally from 7:00a.m.-9:00a.m. in the morning and 6:00p.m.-8:00p.m. in the evening for the 

96 hour constant traffic count. It will review intersections at Evergreen Circle, Sturgis Lane, 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

5 
 

Nicolettas Way, and Echo Road, in addition to new proposed road and then draw conclusions.  

In the memo he wrote months ago, he highlighted the areas of concern in the LCP to develop 

that scope, it essentially encourages boards not to render any approvals for new roads if 

certain conditions may exist, and that is how he drafted the scope for this proposal. We want to 

ensure it is consistent with the zoning bylaw and the LCP. He received four quotes thus far and 

he is anticipating one more quote for the traffic study services.  

 

Ms. Waygan called for further Public Comments, as there were none, she moved on to read 

some correspondence into the record: 

 

Janet Tiexeira- She is against the curb cut at 532 Main St. as it is within 150 ft. of existing 

intersection at Nicolettas Way, very close proximity of many residential driveways, proposed 

road will exit onto the exact location where the bike path begins, and simply trying to cross at 

this location is impossible. She has lived on Main St. for 49 years and has seen how much 

traffic has become. The bike path is used by children on bikes, people walking dogs, and 

runners. If a curb cut is put there, it will be a danger to everyone that uses the bike path.  

  

Donna McCuish, Michael Shelton, and Gennady Konnikov- They are concerned about the 

proximity of this proposed road to the two intersections that already get very busy, Nicolettas 

Way and Echo Road. They are concerned for the safety of walkers, joggers, and bicycle riders 

who have to cross Rt. 130 to continue on the bike path. With extra vehicles entering, the 

likelihood of accidents would increase. As residents of Sturgis Lane, they use the bike path 

regularly along with others who use it to access Heritage Park, the dog park, and it is already 

difficult to cross. What would happen to the cross walk that is currently there? This parcel is 

also located in the Mashpee National Wildlife Refuge and is an important habitat for wildlife 

and has potential for a future water supply area. Residents need more information about this. 

For many reasons, as well as safety, they ask approval not be given for the DPW to grant a 

curb cut here.  

 

Jonathan Small- He is writing with concerns for the proposal to build a new road at 532 Main 

Street. There are many environmental, safety, and access concerns. The proposed curb cut to 

the existing intersection at Nicolettas Way is within 150 ft. He is curious why the parties did not 

come to an agreement. He would like to know implications to the existing crosswalk and bike 

path/ sidewalk. He is concerned about the proximity of all the intersections on this roadway, 

especially near the playground. This creates safety concerns and traffic concerns. He urges 

the Board to consider all issues expressed by the neighbors before proceeding with this 

proposal.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

6 
 

Ms. Waygan asked Mr. Lehrer about the bike path and sidewalks and inquired about their 

ownership. She is curious if we have been in contact about what would happen to those.   

 

Mr. Lehrer stated they are town owned. This has been discussed with DPW, but he does not 

have clarity.   

 

Ms. Waygan is looking for a motion to ask Catherine Laurent, DPW Director to seek clarity on 

sidewalks and bike path and see what it is she needs.  

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to inquire with DPW Director about the sidewalks and bike 

path for the proposed project at 532 Main Street. Seconded by Mr. Fulone. All in favor.  

 

Ms. Waygan commented that Mr. Lehrer has an out of the box idea she would like him to 

share.  

 

Mr. Lehrer knows that the zoning needs clarity when defining distance between the sidelines of 

any road, and does that mean a road on the same side or both sides. The engineers for the 

applicant are interpreting this as same side, so 153.3 ft. from the sidelines would be compliant. 

They certainly need clarity, and he has included this in the scope with the traffic study. The use 

of Nicolettas Way was a valiant attempt, and what we are struck with now are the constitutional 

rights of access and private property as well as safety concerns with a new intersection. In his 

opinion, an idea where everyone walks away slightly uncomfortable but satisfied would be if 

the private road and Nicolettas Way were taken as a public way, then access would be granted 

as a public way, and liability and maintenance would go away, and the town would assume 

ownership and the issue with the neighbors and safety concerns would be rectified. It has not 

been discussed but there is a mechanism the town has at its disposal. As for the Cape Cod 

Commission decision, there were numerous Public Comments regarding the 2002 clear 

cutting. At that time there was contemplation of the public taking of this road, he is unsure why 

that did not happen, but it seems like a prudent endeavor he should ask Counsel and DPW 

Director.  

 

Ms. Waygan would like that idea to go to Town Counsel. She stated the taking of this road 

would have to be an action approved by the town at Town Meeting.  

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Balzarini made a motion for Mr. Lehrer to follow up with Town Counsel and DPW 

Director about the public taking of a private road and town ownership. Seconded by Mr. 

Fulone. All in favor.  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

7 
 

MOTION: 

Ms. Faulkner made a motion to have Town Counsel clarify to the Planning Board what 

Section 174-40: Access Ways in Non Residential districts means and to explain. 

Seconded by Mr. Balzarini. All in favor.  

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to authorize the Town Planner to talk to the owners of 

Nicolettas Way and update the Select Board. Seconded by Ms. Faulkner. All in favor.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated this is a dual step process. First the town would take a vote to authorize the 

Select Board to lay out the streets and prepare the plan, and at the subsequent Town Meeting, 

the town votes to accept the layout after the Planning Board reviews the plan. It requires two 

Town Meetings.  

 

Mr. Balzarini stated this may not be something Nicolettas Way would be on board with, and 

could be contemplated if there was a safety issue.    

 

Ms. Waygan moved on to traffic and stated Mr. Lehrer drafted up a motion.  

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to seek a traffic engineering and transportation planning 

consultant in accordance with Ma General Law 44, Section 53G and the Town of 

Mashpee rules and regulations governing the subdivision of land, for the review of the 

proposed 532 Main Street, Leamar Drive definitive subdivision submitted by Marcello 

Mallegni property owner, consistent with the scope of work outlined in the request for 

quote prepared by Town Planner, Evan Lehrer and distributed to qualified firms for 

solicitation dated October 11, 2022. Furthermore, to authorize the Town Planner to 

request payment from the applicant in the amount not to exceed the lowest quoted price 

from a qualified bidder. The Board also authorizes the Town Planner to slightly modify 

the scope after discussing with project proponents and traffic engineer if necessary. 

Seconded by Ms. Faulkner. All in favor.   

 

Mr. Kirrane asked if they could include something in the motion. They haven’t reviewed the 

scope, but if there were any questions or requests to change or limit the scope, instead of 

coming back before the entire Board, could they leave modifications to the discretion of the 

Town Planner. This was added to the motion above.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated the Board has all quotes that have been provided thus far, he will provide 

them to the Board digitally as well, and keep the Board informed of the last bid. The only 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

8 
 

question remaining is a scheduling one. He anticipates another seven days for the final quote, 

there are discussions to be had relative to scope, assuming we agree on the scope and are in 

a position to award contract to a bidder, we would need to draw up a contract and have it 

executed by the town. It does take time but it’s a question of when this hearing will continue. 

Assuming that takes 2-4 weeks to procure, and 4-6 weeks to complete the study, we are 

looking at 6-8 weeks.  

 

Ms. Waygan said it could be on December 21, 2022 at 7:10 to continue the Public Hearing.  

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to continue the Public Hearing to December 21, 2022 at 

7:10p.m. Seconded by Mr. Richardson. All in favor.  

 

Mr. Balzarini would like to look into putting a sign before approaching the industrial park 

warning people to slow down. He will look for what address the sign should be placed at and 

he will bring it back to the Board for discussion.  

 

NEW BUSINESS  

Due to procedural defect in the public hearing notifications process the Board will re-

vote to set public hearing date for modification of definitive subdivision plan of land 

known as Spring Hill West and re-vote to set public hearing date for associated cluster 

subdivision special permit approved by the Planning Board October 06, 1989 submitted 

by Pleasantwood Homes LLC.  

 

Mr. Lehrer found a procedural defect and had not mailed this Public Hearing to the adjacent 

towns Planning Boards. He would ask this Board re-vote to set the dates for Wednesday, 

November 2, 2022 at 7:15p.m. and 7:10p.m. He did prepare an adequate and comprehensive 

notice.  

 

MOTION:  

Mr. Richardson made a motion to set a Public Hearing for the cluster subdivision 

special permit on November 2, 2022 at 7:15p.m., to be held at the Mashpee Public 

Library. Seconded by Mr. Balzarini.  

 

MOTION: 

Mr. Richardson made a motion to set a Public Hearing for modification of definitive 

subdivision plan of Spring Hill West on November 2, 2022 at 7:10p.m., to be held at the 

Mashpee Public Library. Seconded by Mr. Fulone. All in favor.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

9 
 

OLD BUSINESS  

Local Comprehensive Plan Updates with Weston and Sampson  

Survey Beta Test  

Mr. Lehrer received more comments from the Board and he is compiling a memo to Weston 

and Sampson. He would like to be granular in capturing final feedback to be able to send in 

one detailed email. It’s too much bureaucracy and he really wants to be able to finalize the 

survey. He outlined some necessary changes, mostly to format. Mr. Lehrer commented most 

of the multi-part questions had a massive scale and he would like to remove some options, at 

least one scale level.  

 

Ms. Waygan noted that some options need to say “not applicable”.  

 

Mr. Fulone stated you want the level of importance and two on each side of neutral, with a total 

of five options.  

 

Ms. Waygan gave the example of asking if Mashpee was an ancestral place for you and there 

needing to be a not applicable option.  

 

Mr. Balzarini thought the survey was still very long.  

 

Ms. Waygan commented the quickest any of her contacts took was 15 minutes, and the 

longest it took was 50 minutes. The lengthier times were people writing comments. It is long 

and she thinks that is okay. In the introduction it should say how many questions there are and 

to note this is an investment in Mashpee and to please finish.  

 

Mr. Fulone asked if they discussed people being able to save and go back and finish.  

 

Mr. Lehrer stated for the multi-part questions, whoever went through the survey and entered 

every single option having a choice for every scope. He would like to change that and use a 

matrix with radio buttons, this will shorten the timing as it pertains to half of the survey. The 

survey does a good job in considering every action item to ask a town. Question 7 provided 10 

response options about the extent at which you would support or oppose housing strategies. 

One choice, bonding and loan programs, won’t resonate with people. He thinks it would be 

prudent to strike some items. He was trying to get at if someone was in support of multifamily 

housing in the town.  

 

Ms. Waygan would like to add donation of town owned land to affordable housing. She would 

like to gauge that interest now. She also asked if they want to inquire if the town should 

provide subsidies. 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

10 
 

Mr. Lehrer questions if people really know the mechanics of these things. Understanding their 

level of knowledge is key or valuable data will be lost. 

 

Ms. Faulkner suggested definitions for some items such as ADUs.  

 

Ms. Waygan reframed it as do you support subsidized housing in town? Of everyone’s top two 

concerns in town, climate change isn’t it. It is either water then housing or housing then water. 

There were a lot of questions about climate change.  

 

Mr. Lehrer would like to provide a comprehensive memo with the final draft for their review. 

Anything that is still substandard in consideration of expectation, or missing, they will deal with 

again.   

 

Ms. Waygan would like question 7 under housing to be tightened up as it is too long.  

 

Mr. Lehrer also noted some questions were multiple choice when it should just be a yes or no.  

 

Ms. Waygan commented that question 3 needs a “does not apply” answer option. Question 7 

under housing, she didn’t know it was a question about housing until she was answering it. In 

question 12 or 13, you are likely to pick all and there should be a most pressing level of 

priority. To recap, questions 12, 13, 22, 23, and 25 you can only pick one. At the end, one of 

the climate questions can be omitted, it felt as though she was answering the same question 

twice.  

 

Mr. Fulone stated a couple transportation questions can also be condensed.  

 

Mr. Lehrer noted he will take the comments and tie up loose ends to give back to the Board 

over the next few weeks, he would like to get it done and ready to issue. He will present it at 

the second meeting in November for a public launch.  

 

Ms. Waygan suggested they launch it in early December then extend it into the New Year.   

 

Workshops and Focus Groups  

As Mr. Lehrer is concluding the workshops, the Tribe has agreed to the date of November 13th 

for their general membership meeting. He held the workshop for parents of school aged 

children and no one attended.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

11 
 

Ms. Waygan reminded him about the note she saw on the Mashpee Message about one 

person trying to log on and had a technical problem. If they send her the worksheets she will fill 

them out.   

 

Mr. Lehrer will hold the final general workshop after November 13th but at some point we have 

to move on.   

 

Ms. Waygan stated this is a Tribal Council meeting and it is important to attend formally to 

present and be available to work with people. She would like confirmation they are on the 

agenda for the Tribal Council. She spoke to Cassie Jackson, and she puts the agenda 

together for those meetings. They will need to follow up with her about advertising to Tribal 

citizens. Then they will need to get something together with Weston & Sampson to allow two 

weeks for advertising for anyone who missed the opportunity, it can be sent on facebook and 

to the school, then engagement will be done. She is curious if the workshop data has been 

compiled. Everyone saw the numbers for the first workshop, and they need trends before the 

vision statement and action plans are defined. Where are we, where are we going, and how do 

we get there?  

 

Mr. Lehrer noted there was a force field analysis for the workshops. He has that compiled and 

will be uploading to the planmashpee.com website along with all previous engagement.  

  

Updating the Vision Statement 

Mr. Lehrer would like to get working on the Vision Statement in a special meeting. He thinks 

the 1998 statement is beautiful, there are just some inconsistencies within existing conditions, 

and also new items to address like climate change. This is the town’s vision, so they will be 

taking the current vision, reflect and update it.  

 

Mr. Fulone stated it has to be informed by the data collected.  

 

Ms. Waygan said the survey results will drive their statement as well.  

 

Mr. Lehrer would like a working draft that could be added upon. He would like to review the 

existing vision and work on language to propose for a discussion at the December 7th meeting. 

They will be much closer to the survey at that point.  

 

Ms. Faulkner stated they will be in better shape by then as they will have the new beta test and 

the matrix of the workshops, which they will need.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

12 
 

Mr. Lehrer would like to hold a special workshop for the Board to begin defining those actions. 

He does not want to wait until the end to work on this. They learned a lot through this process 

and can at least come up with a skeleton. Weston and Sampson wanted to draft a memo with 

proposed actions to consider. They are about a year into the contract, with a total of 18 

months. Getting the survey, final workshops, and producing drafts will also take time. The 

contract is up in mid-April.  

 

Ms. Waygan stated if he gets them all the data, then the vision statement and actions steps will 

fall into place.  

 

Ms. Waygan wanted to recap some dates and the timeline. On November 13th they are 

meeting with Tribal Council. Then they will schedule one last virtual workshop. They are 

thinking of launching the survey in the first week of December, and all data can be given to the 

Board prior to their first meeting in December. Visioning will be coming the first weekend of 

December. She thinks it will be beneficial to hold a special meeting during the second week in 

December about action items, the week of the 12th – 16th. That second Wednesday she will be 

at the Commission meeting so she is proposing Thursday, December 15th, maybe around 

5:00p.m. She would like to see her existing conditions red lined and she will ask if they will do 

that.  

  

Workshop on proposed actions  

This item was tabled.  
 

Affordable and Workforce Housing  

Coordination with Affordable Housing Committee and Community Preservation 

Program  

Mr. Lehrer spoke with the Affordable Housing Committee last evening. The Chair asked him to 

start thinking about the launch of the HPP process. As they are nearing the end of the LCP, he 

would like to begin the procurement process for the consultant. The AHC wanted a timeline of 

information and where this update will be taken. They want to begin the scope and scale of 

engagement with this plan. Drafting a request for a quote would be simple. The CPC has 

awarded $50,000 and approval from Town Meeting for the update. He will issue the RFQ, up 

to, but not exceeding $50,000. The writing and issuing of the RFQ is 30 days, they will issue 

an award and execute a contract, which will bring them to December. In early January they will 

begin outlining the process and conducting literature. They will look into engagement that 

would be consistent with best practice. As he explained to the AHC, he would like to create a 

mechanism to hold accountability for the town to bring sites identified for affordable housing 

into fruition. He anticipates it would take around 6 months to get through engagement and 

prepare a draft. The draft would be under review by the AHC for comments and edits, they will 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

13 
 

be incorporated into the draft, and then the draft would be sent to the Planning Board for same 

review and comment. Once a point of comfort is reached with the document, it would then be 

sent to the Select Board and finally to DHCD for certification. The process should take a little 

more than one year. It will launch in January of 2023 and end into early 2024. He will begin 

procurement next week.  

 

Ms. Waygan provided him with some language to use. Minimum requirements for the state can 

always go beyond that. Affordable housing goes on the SHI, the 10% goal, but there is other 

housing like workforce housing that goes above certain income requirements, that still serve 

the community and don’t count towards the 10%. She spoke to the Affordable Housing 

Committee and she asked to put local preference for 950 Falmouth Road with 40 units on their 

next agenda. At the Tribal meeting, Tribal preference was discussed. She asked the AHC to 

draft a letter for the Tribe to be considered, it would account for 70%, 28 units could be 

preference units. The state or subsidizing agency would allow a mix of local, veterans, and 

Tribal citizens for preference. She is hoping the AHC gets a letter drafted for that so it can be 

taken to the Select Board. MASS Housing Partnership’s workforce program serves households 

that earn 60-120% AMI, and units on the SHI have to be at 80% or lower, so there is some 

overlap. If the state is funding, it should go on the inventory.  

 

Mr. Lehrer is confident there is local preference. As for the 10% goal, there is a far greater 

need than that. The workforce programs are relatively new.  

 

ADU Workshop  

This is something Mr. Lehrer will do with his new Assistant. They will be holding coffee hours 

on Fridays with conversation. This is an opportunity to think about what is needed amongst 

fellow department heads and he will have Jennifer spearhead the advertising for the event. He 

could offer it via signups, but it is ultimately for the public to learn.  

 

Ms. Waygan asked they give notice to the Building Department, as people ask them about 

ADU’s they could be jotting people’s names down. She inquired if they do enforcement of 

illegal apartments.  

 

Mr. Lehrer knows of one enforcement off of Nathan Ellis Highway, they built an illegal 

staircase. 

 

Clean Water Initiative  

Low Impact Development passed at Town Meeting. They also had the clean water bylaw. She 

noted May will be packed with Warrants.  

 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

14 
 

Redeveloping Suburban Sprawl, a collection of case studies by Alex Beltran, Mashpee 

Planning Intern Summer 2022  

Mr. Lehrer wanted to take a moment to talk about his summer intern. He wanted him to be able 

to produce something he could site on a resume when looking for jobs. In consideration of 

redevelopment goals, he wanted Mr. Beltran to review current zoning and make a 

recommendation and conduct an analysis. Given the scope of work he took on for the LCP, 

they modified and had him review case studies of redevelopment projects into more mixed use 

walkable pedestrian friendly neighborhoods. He thinks it is very well written, he wanted to take 

a moment to thank Mr. Beltran for his efforts, and noted it was a nice piece of work that he will 

share with the Board. His hard work was definitely noticed here.  

 

Mr. Fulone thought it was exceptional work and would like it posted.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Lynne Barbee- She has a question about the open comment boxes in the beta survey. She 

took it in a half hour. She would like to know how that information is going to be incorporated 

into the results. People will decide to write an essay, and how will that be dealt with? Her other 

question was in regards to the meeting he had with the Tribal Housing Commission that was 

spoken about at last night’s Affordable Housing Committee meeting. It was indicated that he 

attended and she gathered there were no minutes taken. She would like to know what came of 

that meeting. She could not get a good understanding from last evening.   

 

Mr. Lehrer stated the Chair of the Affordable Housing Committee invited him to participate, and 

he was happy to do so. They have been trying to facilitate a more functional relationship with 

tribal housing for some time, and it has been slow progress. This meeting was the first time 

they were able to sit down and lay things on the table. There were a couple things he wanted 

to approach them with, but he wanted to be a listener. They met with the entire Tribal Housing 

Commission, and he doesn’t know them all by name but he knew Chuck Green, Cassie 

Jackson, Shellie Tobey, and Carlton Hendricks. The Tribe had some passionate concerns with 

the Housing Authority. They were very prepared to let them know how upset they were with 

Housing Authority, under the belief the three of them were the Housing Authority. They offered 

guidance on who to speak with as well as make an attempt to understand the issues they are 

all trying to navigate, some are long, deep seeded, and nuanced. They approached this at a 

less technical and more human point of view. We all like to intellectually understand but there 

is a lot we don’t understand culturally, especially when living so closely amongst Tribal 

members. We approached that meeting in showing good faith and demonstrating they are 

serious, not just make a phony offer of collaboration and walk away when it gets hard. This 

was not an easy start, but it got to a place of productivity. The Tribe is concerned from a 

housing perspective, Mr. Hicks was very clear on this. If the Tribe were to participate, they 



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

15 
 

have stern expectations, and they want a tangible outcome. He inquired as to how many units 

they could be given, as there are unhoused Tribal members that desperately need housing. 

Mr. Lehrer was able to communicate the scope of ability in producing units, timelines, and the 

concept of bringing units online, it’s timely and a lot of work. It was narrowed down to Tribal 

preference, he was able to collaborate by not saying how many units could house Tribal 

members today, but this crisis holds lots of competition and a bunch of people with many 

injustices. Through the HPP there is an opportunity to elevate issues pertaining to housing that 

have not been done in any official capacity previously. This will ascertain an appropriate role 

and process for this to be collaborative and seeing what affects them uniquely. They walked 

away knowing they have lots to learn from one another and to come back again so the town 

and Tribe will participate together, i.e. a pipeline of town projects.  

 

ADJOURNMENT  

MOTION:  

Mr. Balzarini made a motion to adjourn the meeting of the Planning Board at 8:52p.m. 

Seconded by Mr. Fulone. All in favor.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS  

Cape Cod Commission-  Mr. Lehrer gets notice of their hearings, especially 

related to the town. The Commission called him last 

week relative to the grocery store on Shellback, and 

he submitted comments. They let him know they are 

looking to schedule the Public Hearing for the first or 

second week of November. He will pass along. Ms. 

Waygan would like the agenda. 

Community Preservation Committee-   There was a Public Hearing two weeks ago and 

people had a lot of comments. Applications are due 

Nov. 17th. Mr. Lehrer noted one parcel on Ashumet 

connecting to Main St. is up for affordable housing of 

100,000 s.f. The seller approached the town to 

gauge interest in the acquisition for affordable 

housing. It was his advice the applicant submit the 

application. Mr. Lehrer stated he is unsure if there 

will be a letter of interest from the property owner to 

the trust. The property owner was the applicant for a 

prior parcel. The Trust should submit an application 

that Mr. Lehrer prepared for them.  

Design Review-      No Meeting  

Plan Review-      No Meeting  



  Town of Mashpee                                     Planning Board  
                      16 Great Neck Road North  
                      Mashpee, Massachusetts 02649 

16 
 

Environmental Oversight Committee-  No Meeting  

Historic District Commission-    No Meeting  

Harbor Management Plan Committee:  Mr. Lehrer has an update regarding this Committee. 

He was made aware initially of the proposal for the 

makeup, which triggered review for how this 

Committee was established in the late 80s. It was 

comprised of Department Heads and experts, there 

will be no Planning Board representative as it is the 

Town Planner who will hold a spot.   

 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

 

 

Christine M. MacDonald  

Board Secretary  

 

 

 

 

LIST OF DOCUMENTS  

Additional documents may be available in the Planning Department.  

- Arden Cadrin, Sturgis Lane, Regarding 532 Main Street Definitive Subdivision Proposal 

- Jonathan Small, Sturgis Lane, Regarding 532 Main Street Definitive Subdivision Proposal  

- Town of Falmouth Notices  

- Town of Sandwich Notices  

- Town of Barnstable Notices  

- MGL Ch. 91 Waterways Application Notice- Joshua M. and Tamara M. Fox, 81 Lighthouse 

Lane  

- MGL Ch. 91 Waterways Application Notice – Mark C. and Kim M. Bush, 87 Lighthouse Lane  

- August 2022 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N=3.4  

- July 2022 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N=4.5 

- June 2022 Discharge Monitoring Report for South Cape Village – N=5.3 





















































































































                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         

                                                                                

                           N O T                 N O T                          

                            A N                   A N                           

                      O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                     

                          C O P Y               C O P Y                         



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           N O T                 N O T                                                      A N                   A N                                                 O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                                               C O P Y               C O P Y                                                                                                                                    N O T                 N O T                                                      A N                   A N                                                 O F F I C I A L       O F F I C I A L                                               C O P Y               C O P Y                         














































































	SpringHillWest_definitive.PDF
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page


	Nitrogen Loading Credit easement.PDF
	Page Identifiers
	AFP Page
	AFP Page
	AFP Page
	AFP Page
	AFP Page
	AFP Page





